Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
April 10,2012

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners, Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, April 10, 2012 at 7:00 pm, at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioners Tim Fowler, Charles Salter, Eber
Warren and Larry Whorton

MEMBER ABSENT: None

OTHERS PRESENT: County Commissioner Kenny Heath, Sally and Tom Covington, Brad
Rice and Judith Lynch of the County Compass

Mayor Potter called the meeting to order by having a moment of silence.

Mayor Potter called for discussion regarding any revision to the proposed agenda.

Commissioner Salter requested to add arrows from Camp Sea Gull under new business.
Commissioner Fowler requested to add repair of town hall roof under new business. It was
recommended that Inquiry from Minnesott Golf and Country Club regarding selling liquor by the
drink be moved from Miscellaneous Information to the Public Comment section. Commissioner
Whorton made a motion to approve the agenda as amended. All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Warren made a motion to accept the minutes from the March 13, 2012 meeting.
All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Warren made a motion to accept the closed session minutes from the March 13,
2012 meeting. All ayes. Motion passed.

Mayor Potter opened the floor for Public Comments. Mr. Brad Rice and Mr. Tom Covington
addressed the board regarding the Minnesott Golf and Country Club getting a license to sell
liquor by the drink. They noted that with improvements that have been made to the club over the
last several years and upon visiting other clubs, it was determined that being able to sell liquor
by the drink would provide much needed revenue and be instrumental in being able to maintain
operations. Mr. Rice stated the club currently has a stabilized staff and management team and
feels the next logical step is to offer liquor by the drink. Mr. Covington stated the belief that the
grill is a tremendous asset, not only to the club but to the community, but unfortunately they are
not making any money. Due to not making any money, there had been discussion at the club to
close down the grill. Mr. Covington stated there is a group determined not to let this happen and
feel that by being able to offer liquor by the drink, the grill can be turned into a money making
business. The club has no intention of changing their hours and turning the grill into a bar and
has been in contact with the North Carolina Alcohol Liquor Enforcement (ALE) agency which is
very strict regarding operations of businesses that sell liquor by the drink. Mr. Covington noted
that a mixed drink has the same alcohol content as a glass of wine or a beer and the club
currently offers beer and wine. Commissioner Fowler inquired about special training for the
staff. Mr. Covington advised ALE provides training for persons authorized to sell liquor and
offered additional information regarding ALE involvement and oversight. Mr. Covington
stressed that they wanted the club to be an asset to the community. It was noted that the club

1/4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
April 10,2012

would have to obtain a license from the liquor board and that part of the process would be a letter
to the town from the liquor board inquiring of any objections before final approval. This matter
requires no action by the board at this time.

During the discussion of selling liquor by the drink, the issue of speeding by persons leaving the
country club was brought forth. Mr. Rice inquired if it was noted when this occurs, whether
during public events/tournaments or regular usage. Mr. Rice stated that periodically the speed
limit is noted in the club's newsletter and members are reminded to respect the town's speed
limits. If it is club members doing it, the club has ways of getting to members and letting them
know it is not acceptable. If it is occurring primarily during events which include persons
coming from outside the community, the club has little to no control other than reminding them
to respect the town speed limits when they send out the invitations. Commissioner Fowler noted
that the individuals who have brought this to the board's attention have not provided information
as to the speeding occurring during a particular time period.

County Commissioner Kenny Heath then addressed the board advising that to the best of his
knowledge the widening and paving of Highway 306 was still on schedule. After completion of
the culverts it would go out on bid and then the contractor had six months to complete the
project. Commissioner Heath noted that in regards to the ferry toll, he has not gotten any
positive feedback but believed it was going to be addressed at the meeting of the General
Assembly in May. Mayor Potter stated that it appears many people have backed off since the
County had hired the lobbyist. Commissioner Heath advised he has also been in contact with
individuals at Cherry Point.

Mayor Potter then commented that he had contacted Department of Transportation (DOT)
regarding the culvert in the area of Phillips Drive and Highway 306 and the drainage issue there
because of the tile under the road being higher than the tile at the ditch. Mayor Potter was
advised it was being addressed. Commissioner Heath then advised that the water problem on
Wayne Drive had been fixed.

Mayor Potter then proceeded with Unfinished Business. Commissioner Fowler addressed the
Water Tower Request for Proposal (RFP). Commissioner Fowler reminded the board that at the
last meeting the board authorized Attorney Jimmie Hicks to draft a contract. Commissioner
Fowler noted that there were blanks that needed to be filled in and provided a copy of the
contract with his recommendations for review by the board. Commissioner Fowler stated that on
page 3 of the contract, Section 1.5, regarding the performance and payment bond, the estimate
from Attorney Jimmie Hicks was $50,000; Commissioner Fowler had put in $20,000.
Commissioner Salter expressed concern that local contractors may not be able to afford the bond.
Commissioner Fowler reviewed the remainder of the contract and, with input from the board,
revisions and changes were finalized. Commissioner Whorton noted that item 9 in the scope of
work referred to some work being done which would require access to private property. At the
March meeting it was noted that Mr. Pawlikowski had advised that he was authorized to oversee
this property which belongs to Mr. Weston, and would provide permission. Commissioner

2/4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
April 10,2012

Whorton expressed concern that permission to access this property should be obtained directly
from Mr. Weston unless Mr. Pawlikowski has legal power of attorney. Commissioner Fowler
said he could make that work an option within the contract in the event permission was not
received. Commissioner Fowler made a motion to accept the contract and statement of work
with the modification that item 9 is an option and the request for bids be advertised. All ayes.
Motion passed.

Commissioner Fowler then discussed Counﬁv Club Drive. Attorney Hicks wrote a letter to
Avolis Engineering and received a response stating that they do not feel they have done anything
wrong and did not recall being shown, with certainty, where the road ended. Mr. Avolis advised
if the town could verify that the town road did not extend to the area that was paved, Avolis
would consider some relief. Commissioner Warren noted that he recalled it being discussed in
the meeting with Mr. Avolis present, that the road ended on this side of the causeway. Mayor
Potter advised that he believed it could be determined from the deeds from the Department of
Transportation (DOT) whether the town owns it or not. The matter was tabled until the next
meeting pending further research.

Mayor Potter then proceeded with New Business. Commissioner Fowler addressed the drainage
issue on Phillips Drive. Commissioner Fowler stated that there are several holes up and down
Phillips Drive. The holes are submerged tiles that are part of the drainage system which are
causing leakage in front of Paul Johnson's house. Commissioner Fowler asked for suggestions
on what the board wanted to do. Commissioner Fowler noted that water is still draining in this
area and some options are to just continue to fill in the holes as they occur; dig up the tiles and
leave an open ditch; or, dig up and replace the tile, which has been done before. Mayor Potter
noted that the problem has always been from Paul Johnson's driveway to Peele Drive and there
had not been problems Bob Evans residence to the driveway. Commissioner Fowler advised that
now there are several holes between the Evans property and the Johnson driveway.
Commissioner Fowler stated that the town had been approved to receive a grant for a study of
the drainage system. The map from 2000 with existing town drainage information was then
reviewed with further discussion regarding locations of problems and concerns. Commissioner
Warren made a motion for Commissioner Fowler to get an assessment and estimates for finding
a resolution to this problem. All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Whorton addressed the renewal agreement with Waste Industries for trash and
recycling pickup noting that the current contract expires June 30, 2012. Commissioner
Whorton reviewed the amendment of the contract agreement which extends the contract to June
30, 2014. Commissioner Whorton advised that the rate would remain the same as the current
rate through June 30, 2013 with a possible cost increase for July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014.
Commissioner Whorton made a motion that the contract be renewed for two additional years.
All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Salter expressed concerns regarding the vacant lot on Highway 306 across from
town hall. There is a trailer on the lot and nothing has been attended to for a long period of time.

3/4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
April 10,2012

It was determined that the vacant lot is not within town limits. Matter withdrawn, no further
discussion.

Commissioner Salter addressed arrows coming across the road from Camp Sea Gull and ending
up in the lots close to the condos. Commissioner Salter made a motion to send a letter of
complaint to Camp Sea Gull and request a corrective action statement. All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Fowler stated that when our maintenance personnel recently cleaned the gutters of
town hall, it was noted there were several rust spots that needed to be fixed and the roof re-
sealed. Commissioner Fowler made a motion to allocate up to $1,000 to repair the roof. All
ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Reports:

Commissioner Warren provided the budget report noting the following balances for the period
ending March 31, 2012: First Citizens Checking, $5,443.07; First Citizens Savings,
$189,476.11; North Carolina Management Trust, $200,431.77; First South Bank Savings,
$104,559.88; and First South Bank CD, $20,339.84. Commissioner Warren noted that the Town
remains in excellent financial condition. Commissioner Warren advised that a draft budget for
fiscal year 2012/2013 will hopefully be available for the board at the next meeting to review
prior to having a public hearing in June.

Commissioner Whorton reported that no zoning permits had been issued since the last meeting.

Commissioner Fowler reported that Bobby Cahoon has completed the work on the catch basin,
which was needed as a result of Hurricane Irene, and the tile is now straight.

Commissioner Salter motioned to adjourn. All ayes. Motion passed.

ke Ty /éfzz

Linda Taylor, Town/flerk

4/4



